
Executive Subcommittee Meeting 
Monday, October 28, 2019 

Table of Contents 

Contents 

Agenda .................................................................................................................................... 2 

Meeting Minutes .................................................................................................................... 4 

Study Timeline ...................................................................................................................... 18 

Figure 1. Key dates in the study process, December 2018 to present ................................................... 18 

Agency Snapshot .................................................................................................................. 19 

Figure 2. Snapshot of the agency’s history, mission, organizational units, fiscal year 2017-18 
resources (employees and funding), successes, and challenges ............................................................ 19 

Charities and Trademarks Deliverables ................................................................................ 20 

Committee Contact Information and Upcoming Meetings ................................................173 

End Notes ............................................................................................................................175 



 

 
 

 

AGENDA 



 

 
 

South Carolina  
House of Representatives   

  

  
  

Legislative Oversight Committee  
   
 
 

EXECUTIVE SUBCOMMITTEE  
Chairman Gary E. Clary 

The Honorable Chandra E. Dillard 
The Honorable Laurie Slade Funderburk  
The Honorable Wm. Weston J. Newton  

  
Monday, October 28, 2019 

10:30 a.m. 
Room 321, Blatt Building 

Pursuant to Committee Rule 6.8, S.C. ETV shall be allowed access for internet 
streaming whenever technologically feasible.  

  

AGENDA  
  

I. Approval of Subcommittee Meeting Minutes  
 

II. Discussion of the study of the Secretary of State’s Office 
 

III. Adjournment  



 

 
 

MEETING MINUTES 
 



 
 
First Vice-Chair: 
Laurie Slade Funderburk 
 
Micajah P. (Micah) Caskey, IV 
Neal A. Collins 
Patricia Moore (Pat) Henegan 
William M. (Bill) Hixon 
Jeffrey E. (Jeff) Johnson 
Marvin R. Pendarvis 
Tommy M. Stringer 
Bill Taylor 
Robert Q. Williams 
 
 
 
Jennifer L. Dobson 
Research Director 
 
Cathy A. Greer 
Administration Coordinator 

Chair Wm. Weston J. Newton 
 

Legislative Oversight Committee 
 
 
 
 
 

South Carolina House of Representatives 
 

Post Office Box 11867 
Columbia, South Carolina 29211 

Telephone: (803) 212-6810 • Fax: (803) 212-6811 
Room 228 Blatt Building 

 
 
 
 
 
Gary E. Clary 
Chandra E. Dillard 
Lee Hewitt 
Joseph H. Jefferson, Jr. 
Mandy Powers Norrell 
Robert L. Ridgeway, III 
Edward R. Tallon, Sr. 
John Taliaferro (Jay) West, IV 
Chris Wooten 
 
 
 
Charles L. Appleby, IV 
Legal Counsel 
 
Kendra H. Wilkerson 
Fiscal/Research Analyst 

 

 
 

Executive Subcommittee 
Friday, September 27, 2019  

10:30 a.m. 
Blatt Room 321 

 
 

Archived Video Available 
 

I. Pursuant to House Legislative Oversight Committee Rule 6.8, South Carolina ETV was 
allowed access for streaming the meeting. You may access an archived video of this 
meeting by visiting the South Carolina General Assembly’s website 
(http://www.scstatehouse.gov) and clicking on Committee Postings and Reports, then under 
House Standing Committees click on Legislative Oversight. Then, click on Video Archives for a 
listing of archived videos for the Committee. 
 

Attendance 
 

I. Subcommittee Chairman Gary E. Clary calls the Executive Subcommittee meeting to 
order on Friday, September 27, 2019, in Room 321 of the Blatt Building. The following 
members of the Subcommittee are present during all or part of the meeting: 
Subcommittee Chairman Clary, and Representative Wm. Weston J. Newton.  
Representative Chandra E. Dillard and Representative Laurie Slade Funderburk were 
absent from the meeting. 

 



 

 
 

Discussion of the Secretary of State’s Office 
 

I. Subcommittee Chairman Clary explains the purpose of today’s meeting is for the S.C. 
Secretary of State’s Office (SoS) to present information on its history and mission; 
qualifications and duties of the agency head; overview of divisions, finances, and 
employees; federal and local counterparts; compliance with records management, 
regulations and reporting; audit and risk mitigation practices; and successes, challenges, 
and emerging issues 

 
II. Subcommittee Chairman Clary explains that all testimony given to this subcommittee, 

which is an investigating committee, must be under oath.  He places the following agency 
personnel under oath: 

a. Secretary of State Mark Hammond; 
b. Ms. Melissa Dunlap, Deputy Secretary of State and Chief Legal Counsel; 
c. Ms. Shannon Wiley, General Counsel; 
d. Ms. Meredith Augustine, Deputy General Counsel; 
e. Ms. LaToria Williams, Director of Administration; 
f. Ms. Renee Daggerhart, Executive Assistant to Secretary Hammond/Media 

Relations/Trademarks; 
g. Ms. Jody Steigerwalt, Director of Business Filings; 
h. Ms. Kimberly Wickersham, Director of Public Charities; 
i. Mr. Doug Renew, Chief Investigator; 
j. Ms. Kataria Watkins, Director of Notaries, Boards & Commissions, Apostilles & 

Authentications; and  
k. Mr. Marion Weaver, Director of Information Technology. 

 
III. Secretary of State Mark Hammond provides remarks and introduces Ms. Melissa Dunlap, 

Deputy Secretary of State and Chief Legal Counsel, who will present the agency 
information. 
 

IV. Ms. Dunlap presents information about the agency, which includes the following: 
a. Agency head qualifications;  
b. Current agency head background; 
c. Purpose of agency; 
d. Overview of divisions;  
e. History; 
f. Mission;  
g. Finance overview; 
h. Employee Overview; 

i. Organizational chart; 
ii. Onboarding processes; 

iii. Retention; 



 

 
 

iv. Staff certifications; 
v. Demographics; 

vi. Equal employment opportunity ranking; 
vii. Small and minority business contracting and certification report; 

i. Counterparts, federal and local; 
i. Internal Revenue Service; 

ii. United States Patent and Trademark Office; 
j. Compliance; 

i. Records management; 
ii. Review of agency regulations; 

iii. Reports of agency; 
k. Audit & Risk Mitigation; 

i. Internal audit processes; 
ii. State seal; 

l. Successes; 
i. Business entities online; 

ii. Uniform commercial code online filing search and document retrieval; 
iii. Charities online filing; 
iv. Boards and commissions online searchable database 

m. Challenges; 
i. Technology; 

ii. Participation in additional multistate charity actions; 
iii. Physical security; 

n. Emerging Issues; 
i. Electronic and remote online notarization; 

ii. Emergence of crowdfunding platforms; and  
iii. Collection of beneficial ownership information. 

 
Members ask questions, which Ms. Dunlap answers. 
 

V. There being no further business, the meeting is adjourned. 
 



 
 
First Vice-Chair: 
Laurie Slade Funderburk 
 
Micajah P. (Micah) Caskey, IV 
Neal A. Collins 
Patricia Moore (Pat) Henegan 
William M. (Bill) Hixon 
Jeffrey E. (Jeff) Johnson 
Marvin R. Pendarvis 
Tommy M. Stringer 
Bill Taylor 
Robert Q. Williams 
 
 
 
Jennifer L. Dobson 
Research Director 
 
Cathy A. Greer 
Administration Coordinator 

Chair Wm. Weston J. Newton 
 

Legislative Oversight Committee 
 
 
 
 
 

South Carolina House of Representatives 
 

Post Office Box 11867 
Columbia, South Carolina 29211 

Telephone: (803) 212-6810 • Fax: (803) 212-6811 
Room 228 Blatt Building 

 
 
 
 
 
Gary E. Clary 
Chandra E. Dillard 
Lee Hewitt 
Joseph H. Jefferson, Jr. 
Mandy Powers Norrell 
Robert L. Ridgeway, III 
Edward R. Tallon, Sr. 
John Taliaferro (Jay) West, IV 
Chris Wooten 
 
 
 
Charles L. Appleby, IV 
Legal Counsel 
 
Kendra H. Wilkerson 
Fiscal/Research Analyst 

 

 
 

 
Executive Subcommittee 

Tuesday, June 25, 2019  
9:00 a.m. 

Blatt Room 403 
 
 

Archived Video Available 
 

II. Pursuant to House Legislative Oversight Committee Rule 6.8, South Carolina ETV was 
allowed access for streaming the meeting. You may access an archived video of this 
meeting by visiting the South Carolina General Assembly’s website 
(http://www.scstatehouse.gov) and clicking on Committee Postings and Reports, then under 
House Standing Committees click on Legislative Oversight. Then, click on Video Archives for a 
listing of archived videos for the Committee. 
 

Attendance 
 

II. Subcommittee Chairman Gary E. Clary calls the Executive Subcommittee meeting to 
order on Tuesday, June 25, 2019, in Room 403 of the Blatt Building. The following 
members of the Subcommittee are present during all or part of the meeting: 
Subcommittee Chairman Clary, Representative Chandra E. Dillard, Representative 
Laurie Slade Funderburk, and Representative Wm. Weston J. Newton.



 

 
 

Minutes 
 

I. House Rule 4.5 requires standing committees to prepare and make available to the 
public the minutes of committee meetings, but the minutes do not have to be 
verbatim accounts of meetings. It is the practice of the Legislative Oversight 
Committee to provide minutes for its subcommittee meetings. 

II. Representative Newton moves to approve the minutes from the prior 
Subcommittee meeting. A roll call vote is held, and the motion passes. 

Rep. Newton moves to approve the 
minutes from the Subcommittee’s March 
26, 2019, meeting: 

Yea Nay Not Voting (Not present) 

Rep. Clary    

Rep. Dillard    

Rep. Funderburk    

Rep. Newton    

 
Discussion of the S.C. Aeronautics Commission 

 

VI. Subcommittee Chairman Clary explains the purpose of today’s meeting is to ask 
questions and make motions based on information received in prior meetings and 
for the S.C. Aeronautics Commission (SCAC) to present information on its 
administration organizational unit. 

 
VII. Subcommittee Chairman Clary explains that all testimony given to this 

subcommittee, which is an investigating committee, must be under oath.  He 
reminds all agency personnel previously sworn in that they remain under oath. 

 
VIII. Director James Stephens presents information on the agency’s administration unit.  

Members ask questions, which Director Stephens answers. 

 
IX. Members make motions during the meeting, which are listed on the next page.  A 

roll call vote is held for the motions, and, among the members present, the motions 
pass unanimously. 

 
 
 



 

 
 

Rep. Newton moves that the 
Subcommittee Study include a 
recommendation that the Aeronautics 
Commission determine benefits of, and 
what is necessary for, it to track and 
validate scheduled times and mileage of 
aircrafts subject to the airline property tax 
and provide its analysis to the Committee 
within the next twelve months. 

Yea Nay Not Voting (Not Present) 

Rep. Clary    

Rep. Dillard    

Rep. Funderburk    

Rep. Newton    

 
 
 

 
 

 

Rep. Newton moves that the 
Subcommittee Study include a 
recommendation that the General 
Assembly consider clarifying the 
transportation company aircraft fuel sales 
tax exemption by revising S.C. Code Ann. 
§ 12-36-2120(9)(d) [exemptions from sales 
tax] to make the exemption only available 
to entities that pay the airline property 
tax. 

Yea Nay Not Voting (Not Present) 

Rep. Clary    

Rep. Dillard    

Rep. Funderburk    

Rep. Newton    

Rep. Newton moves that the 
Subcommittee Study include a 
recommendation that the Aeronautics 
Commission develop a schedule to digitize 
the physical maps, photos, and other 
SCAC printed materials stored at its office. 

Yea Nay Not Voting (Not Present) 

Rep. Clary    

Rep. Dillard    

Rep. Funderburk    

Rep. Newton    



 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

Rep. Newton moves that the 
Subcommittee Study include a finding that 
if a dedicated source of funding for 
matching state grants is accessible each 
year in July, the state may further leverage 
federal funding for airports within the 
state recognized in National Plan of 
Integrated Airport Systems (NPIAS). 

Yea Nay Not Voting (Not Present) 

Rep. Clary    

Rep. Dillard    

Rep. Funderburk    

Rep. Newton    

Rep. Dillard moves that the Subcommittee 
Study include a finding that the 
determination of whether a flight on a 
state-owned aircraft is for official business 
is not made by SCAC; rather, it is made by 
the entity requesting the flight with 
oversight provided by those regulating the 
entity’s actions. 

Yea Nay Not Voting (Not Present) 

Rep. Clary    

Rep. Dillard    

Rep. Funderburk    

Rep. Newton    

Rep. Dillard moves that the Subcommittee 
Study include a recommendation that the 
Aeronautics Commission establish a 
method to electronically collect flight 
information (e.g., passenger names, 
purpose of each flight, etc.) in advance of a 
flight and publish it, after the flight, in a 
searchable, online format (e.g., search by 
purpose, agency, passengers, 
reimbursement status, etc.). 

Yea Nay Not Voting (Not Present) 

Rep. Clary    

Rep. Dillard    

Rep. Funderburk    

Rep. Newton    



 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

Rep. Dillard moves that the Subcommittee 
Study include a recommendation that the 
General Assembly consider codifying state 
operated aircraft flight log requirements in 
Proviso 117.22 from the 2018-19 General 
Appropriations Act and require the log to 
be in an online, searchable format. 

Yea Nay Not Voting (Not Present) 

Rep. Clary    

Rep. Dillard    

Rep. Funderburk    

Rep. Newton    

Rep. Dillard moves that the Subcommittee 
Study include a finding that SCAC has no 
minority representation on its commission 
and has not since at least 2005. 

Yea Nay Not Voting (Not Present) 

Rep. Clary    

Rep. Dillard    

Rep. Funderburk    

Rep. Newton    

Rep. Dillard moves that the Subcommittee 
Study include a recommendation that the 
Aeronautics Commission provide notice to 
the appropriate congressional district 
legislative delegation one year prior to the 
expiration of a commissioner’s term and 
include in the notice a copy of the laws 
applicable to the commission, such as S.C. 
Code Section 13-1-1020, which states in 
part, “The elections or appointments shall 
take into account race and gender so as to 
represent, to the greatest extent possible, 
all segments of the population of the State . 
. . .”    

Yea Nay Not Voting (Not Present) 

Rep. Clary    

Rep. Dillard    

Rep. Funderburk    

Rep. Newton    



 

 
 

 

 
 

 
  

Rep. Dillard moves that the Subcommittee 
Study include a recommendation that the 
Aeronautics Commission request a waiver 
from the State Fiscal Accountability 
Authority (SFAA) and Joint Bond Review 
Committee (JBRC), authorizing it to 
participate in the federal asset transfer 
program if the prerequisite approval from 
its commission prior to accepting any 
assets remains. 

Yea Nay Not Voting (Not Present) 

Rep. Clary    

Rep. Dillard    

Rep. Funderburk    

Rep. Newton    

Rep. Funderburk moves that the 
Subcommittee Study include a 
recommendation that the Aeronautics 
Commission determine if there are 
potential cost savings it may obtain 
through the purchase of a utility plane 
versus entering into agreements with 
another state agency for use of a utility 
plane and provide the analysis to the 
Committee within the next twelve 
months. 

Yea Nay Not Voting (Not Present) 

Rep. Clary    

Rep. Dillard    

Rep. Funderburk    

Rep. Newton    



 

 
 

 

 
 

 
  

Rep. Funderburk moves that the 
Subcommittee Study include a 
recommendation that the Aeronautics 
Commission require adherence to airport 
land use and safety zones as a prerequisite 
to receiving state grants administered by 
SCAC (e.g., include in forthcoming 
regulations).  

Yea Nay Not Voting (Not Present) 

Rep. Clary    

Rep. Dillard    

Rep. Funderburk    

Rep. Newton    

Rep. Funderburk moves that the 
Subcommittee Study include a finding that 
as of June 2019, (a) SCAC has never 
exercised its authority to separately or 
jointly acquire, establish, construct, 
expand, own, lease, control, equip, 
improve, maintain and operate its own 
airports, or, among other things, acquire 
land by condemnation or purchase; and 
(b) Clemson University has never 
exercised its authority to develop an 
airport. 

Yea Nay Not Voting (Not Present) 

Rep. Clary    

Rep. Dillard    

Rep. Funderburk    

Rep. Newton    



 

 
 

 

 
 

 
  

Rep. Funderburk moves that the 
Subcommittee Study include a finding that 
(a) no entity or division within state 
government is tasked with centralized 
management of manned aircraft (i.e., 
airplanes, helicopters) or information 
pertaining to their operations, and (b) no 
entity or division within state government 
is tasked with centralized management of 
unmanned aircraft systems (e.g., drones) 
or information pertaining to their 
operations. 

Yea Nay Not Voting (Not Present) 

Rep. Clary    

Rep. Dillard    

Rep. Funderburk    

Rep. Newton    

Rep. Newton moves that the 
Subcommittee Study include a finding that 
four provisos related to SCAC have been 
included, with minimal to no change, in 
the General Appropriations Act for more 
than a decade, and the General Assembly 
may wish to consider codifying one or 
more of them.  Topics addressed by these 
provisos include: reimbursement for 
services; carry forward; office space rental; 
hangar/parking facilities; and aviation 
grants.   

Yea Nay Not Voting (Not Present) 

Rep. Clary    

Rep. Dillard    

Rep. Funderburk    

Rep. Newton    



 

 
 

 

 
 

  

Rep. Newton moves that the 
Subcommittee Study include a finding that 
if more state-owned aircraft move to using 
a central source (i.e., SCAC) for fuel and 
maintenance, when possible, there may be 
a potential cost savings for the state.  

Yea Nay Not Voting (Not Present) 

Rep. Clary    

Rep. Dillard    

Rep. Funderburk    

Rep. Newton    

Rep. Funderburk moves that the 
Subcommittee Study include a 
recommendation that the General 
Assembly consider removing the 
requirement that SCAC provide State Law 
Enforcement Division personnel methods 
to test flight crew members’ blood alcohol 
content in S. C. Code Ann. § 55-1-100(B) 
[Operating or acting as flight crew 
member of aircraft while under influence 
of alcohol or drugs unlawful; criminal 
prosecution and rights of accused; 
penalties]. 

Yea Nay Not Voting (Not Present) 

Rep. Clary    

Rep. Dillard    

Rep. Funderburk    

Rep. Newton    



 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

X. There being no further business, the meeting is adjourned. 

Rep. Dillard moves that the Subcommittee 
Study include a recommendation that the 
General Assembly consider revising S.C. 
Code Ann. § 15-9-410 [Provisions as to 
nonresident aircraft operators are not 
applicable to certain air carriers] to 
conform to Federal Aviation 
Administration requirements. 

Yea Nay Not Voting (Not Present) 

Rep. Clary    

Rep. Dillard    

Rep. Funderburk    

Rep. Newton    

Rep. Dillard moves that the Subcommittee 
Study include a recommendation that the 
General Assembly consider repealing S.C. 
Code Ann. §§ 23-33-10 [“Missile” defined] 
and 23-33-20 [Permit required for firing 
missile], as federal laws and regulations 
supersede these statutes. 

Yea Nay Not Voting (Not Present) 

Rep. Clary    

Rep. Dillard    

Rep. Funderburk    

Rep. Newton    

Rep. Dillard moves that the Subcommittee 
Study include a recommendation that the 
Aeronautics Commission conduct a formal 
evaluation of SCAC’s executive director on 
a regular basis (e.g., annual or biennial) 
and include the requirement of, and 
procedures for, this evaluation in SCAC’s 
written policies. 

Yea Nay Not Voting (Not Present) 

Rep. Clary    

Rep. Dillard    

Rep. Funderburk    

Rep. Newton    



STUDY TIMELINE 
The House Legislative Oversight Committee’s (Committee) process for studying the Secretary of State’s 
Office (agency or Office) includes actions by the full Committee; Executive Subcommittee 
(Subcommittee); the agency; and the public.  Key dates and actions are listed below. 

• December 5, 2018 - Holds Meeting #1 to prioritize the agency for study
• January 9, 2019 - Provides the agency notice about the oversight process
• February 27 - April 1, 2019 - Solicits input about the agency in the form of an online public survey
• August 13, 2019 - Holds Meeting #2 to obtain public input about the agency

• September 27, 2019 - Holds Meeting #3 to discuss the agency's history and mission; qualifications
and duties of the agency head; overview of divisions, finances, and employees; federal and local
counterparts; compliance with records management, regulations and reporting; audit and risk
mitigation practices; and successes, challenges, and emerging issues

• October 28, 2019 - (TODAY) Holds Meeting #4 to discuss the agency's public charities unit and
related deliverables

• March 31, 2015 - Submits its Annual Restructuring and Seven-Year Plan Report
• January 12, 2016 - Submits its 2016 Annual Restructuring Report
• September 2016 - Submits its 2015-16 Accountability Report
• September 2017 - Submits its 2016-17 Accountability Report
• September 2018 - Submits its 2017-18 Accountability Report
• May 3, 2019 - Submits its Program Evaluation Report

• February 27 - April 1, 2019 - Provides input about the agency via an online public survey
• Ongoing - Submits written comments on the Committee's webpage on the General Assembly's

website (www.scstatehouse.gov)\

Figure 1. Key dates in the study process, December 2018 to present 

Executive Subcommittee Actions 

Secretary of State's Office 

Public’s Actions 

Legislative Oversight Committee Actions 

http://www.scstatehouse.gov)/


 

 
 

AGENCY SNAPSHOT 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Figure 2. Snapshot of the agency’s history, mission, organizational units, fiscal year 2017-18 resources (employees and funding), successes, and challenges1  



 

 
 

CHARITIES AND TRADEMARKS DELIVERABLES 
 
  



DELIVERABLE GROUP 1
House Legislative Oversight Review of Secretary of State’s Office

1



Disclaimer:  
Updates to Program Evaluation Report

In the course of preparing the 
Deliverable Group presentations, some 
data provided in the original Program 
Evaluation Report has been corrected.  
The presentations will reference the 
corrected data, and the Program 
Evaluation Report will be updated 
once the Deliverable Group 
presentations are concluded. 

2



Deliverable Group 1

Divisions Grouped in Deliverable Group 1:
 Public Charities

 Investigations & Trademarks

 Legal Functions Related to Public Charities, Investigations & Trademarks

3



Deliverable Group 1

 Municipal Incorporation

 Annexations

 Special Purpose Districts

 Joint Agencies & Joint Systems

 Service of Process

 Cable Franchise Authority

 Employment Agencies

 Business Opportunities

Although Municipalities is part of the Public Charities Division, it will be addressed 
in Deliverable Group 4 due to the number and variety of functions included under 
that area, such as:

4



5



DIVISION OF PUBLIC CHARITIES

 The purpose of the Division of Public 
Charities is to enforce the South Carolina 
Solicitation of Charitable Funds Act (S.C. 
Code of Laws § 33-56-10 et. seq.).

 The Solicitation of Charitable Funds Act 
was enacted in 1994 in order to regulate 
the manner, conditions, and procedures 
in which organizations solicit charitable 
funds in the State of South Carolina.

6



Solicitation of Charitable Funds Act:
Why Charities Regulation Matters 

 The purpose of the Solicitation of 
Charitable Funds Act is to provide 
transparency and accountability to 
charitable donors and members of 
the public about how charities use 
donations.

 The Secretary of State also 
protects charitable donors by 
enforcing the requirements of the 
Solicitation of Charitable Funds 
Act.

7



Filings

Enforcement

Public 
Education

CHARITIES 
REGULATION UNDER 

SOLICITATION OF 
CHARITABLE FUNDS ACT

8



Public Charities
& Municipalities Investigations 

& Trademarks

Legal

CHARITIES FILINGS,
ENFORCEMENT & 

PUBLIC EDUCATION

9



DIVISION OF PUBLIC CHARITIES:
FILINGS

 Charitable Organizations

 Professional Solicitors

 Professional Fundraising Counsel

 Commercial Co-venturers

Types of entities required to file with the Charities Division under the 
Solicitation of Charitable Funds Act:

10



DIVISION OF PUBLIC CHARITIES:
FILINGS
What is considered a “charitable organization” under the Solicitation of 
Charitable Funds Act?

 “Charitable organization” is defined as a person:

 that has been determined by the Internal Revenue Service to be a tax exempt 
organization pursuant to Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code; 

 that is or holds itself out to be established for any benevolent, social welfare, 
scientific, educational, environmental, philanthropic, humane, patriotic, 
public health, civic, or other eleemosynary purpose, or for the benefit of law 
enforcement personnel, firefighters, or other persons who protect the public 
safety; or

 that employs a charitable appeal as the basis of solicitation or an appeal that 
suggests that there is a charitable purpose to a solicitation, or that solicits or 
obtains contributions solicited from the public for a charitable purpose.

11



DIVISION OF PUBLIC CHARITIES:
FILINGS

Types of entities that solicit donations but that are excluded from the definition 
of “charitable organization” include:

 Churches, synagogues, mosques and other houses of worship

 Religious organizations not required to file financial reports with the IRS 
based on their religious classification

 Political candidates and parties

 Entities that are required to file with the Federal Election Commission or 
State Election Commission, such as political action committees 

12



DIVISION OF PUBLIC CHARITIES:
FILINGS
Types of filings for charitable organizations include:

 Registration Statements for a Charitable Organization

 Annual Applications for Registration Exemption

 Annual Financial Reports

 Annual Financial Report Extension Requests

 Applications for Payroll Deduction

13



Registration Statement for a Charitable Organization
Deliverable Nos. 1, 2 & 3

 The registration statement must be 
filed prior to solicitation.

 Registration statements must be 
renewed annually, and are due 4 ½ 
months after the end of the 
charitable organization’s fiscal 
year.

 The annual registration fee is 
$50.00.

14

Required by S.C. Code 
§§ 33-56-30, -40, -45

Customers: 
Charitable Organizations; 
Children’s Trust Fund of 
S.C.; Fire Departments

Legislative Intent:
Regulate manner, conditions, and 
procedures under which charitable 
funds may be solicited in S.C. 
(1994 Act. No. 461) 



Registration Statement for a Charitable 
Organization
Deliverable Nos. 1, 2 & 3

Registration Fee Waivers:

 Under Section 33-56-40, the Children’s Trust Fund of South Carolina must 
register, but is not required to pay the $50.00 filing fee.

 Under Section 33-56-45, fire departments must register, but a local 
governing body may pay a single $50.00 filing fee for all fire departments 
within its jurisdiction.  

15

Required by S.C. Code 
§§ 33-56-30, -40, -45

Customers: 
Charitable Organizations; 
Children’s Trust Fund of 
S.C.; Fire Departments

Legislative Intent:
Regulate manner, conditions, and 
procedures under which charitable 
funds may be solicited in S.C. 
(1994 Act. No. 461) 



8,500

9,000

9,500

10,000

10,500

11,000

11,500

9,687
9,850

10,801

11,170

Number of Charitable Organizations 
Filing Registration Statements

FY 2015-16 FY 2016-17 FY 2017-18 FY 2018-19

16



Application for Registration Exemption
Deliverable No. 4

The following types of charitable organizations may file an application for 
registration exemption if their fundraising activities are not conducted by 
professional fundraisers:

 Educational institutions

 Person or organization soliciting contributions for a specific named individual 
and all proceeds to be turned over to that individual

 Tax-exempt organizations which intend to solicit less than $20,000.00 and all 
functions of the organization (including fundraising) are conducted by persons 
compensated less than $500.00

17

Provided under S.C. Code 
§ 33-56-50

Customer: 
Charitable Organizations

Legislative Intent:
Regulate manner, conditions, and 
procedures under which 
charitable funds may be solicited 
in S.C. (1994 Act. No. 461) 



Application for Registration Exemption
Deliverable No. 4

The following types of charitable organizations may file an application for 
registration exemption if their fundraising activities are not conducted by 
professional fundraisers:

 Organizations that solicit only from members

 Veterans’ organizations with a congressional charter

 The State and political subdivisions that are subject to the Freedom of 
Information Act

18

Provided under S.C. Code 
§ 33-56-50

Customer: 
Charitable Organizations

Legislative Intent:
Regulate manner, conditions, 
and procedures under which 
charitable funds may be solicited 
in S.C. (1994 Act. No. 461) 



Application for Registration Exemption
Deliverable No. 4

The following types of charitable organizations may file an application for 
registration exemption regardless if their fundraising activities are 
conducted by professional fundraisers:

 Public school districts and public schools

 Organizations that solicit less than $7,500.00 per year

19

Provided under S.C. Code 
§ 33-56-50

Customer: 
Charitable Organizations

Legislative Intent:
Regulate manner, conditions, and 
procedures under which 
charitable funds may be solicited 
in S.C. (1994 Act. No. 461) 



Application for Registration Exemption
Deliverable No. 4

 A charitable organization claiming 
exemption must file an annual 
application with the Division of 
Public Charities.

 There is no filing fee for the 
application for exemption.

 Exempt charitable organizations do 
not have to file annual financial 
reports with the Division of Public 
Charities.

20

Provided under S.C. Code 
§ 33-56-50

Customer: 
Charitable Organizations

Legislative Intent:
Regulate manner, conditions, and 
procedures under which 
charitable funds may be solicited 
in S.C. (1994 Act. No. 461) 



2,680

2,700

2,720

2,740

2,760

2,780

2,800

2,820

2,840

2,734

2,753

2,783

2,839

Number of Charitable Organizations Filing 
Annual Applications for Registration Exemption

FY 2015-16 FY 2016-17 FY 2017-18 FY 2018-19

21



0

2,000

4,000

6,000

8,000

10,000

12,000

14,000

16,000

FY 2015-16 FY 2016-17 FY 2017-18 FY 2018-19

9,687 9,850
10,801 11,170

2,734 2,753
2,783 2,839

Total Number of Charities Soliciting in South Carolina on File 
with the Division of Public Charities

Registration Statement Application for Registration Exemption

12,603

22

12,421
13,584 14,009



Annual Financial Reports & Extension Requests
Deliverable Nos. 5 & 6

 Registered charitable organizations 
must file an annual financial report 
with the Division of Public Charities 
using one of the following: 
 IRS Form 990

 IRS Form 990-EZ

 IRS Form 990 PF

 The Secretary of State’s annual 
financial report form.

 There is no filing fee to submit the 
annual financial report.

23

Required by S.C. Code 
§§ 33-56-60, -60(A)

Customer: 
Charitable Organizations

Legislative Intent:
Regulate manner, conditions, and 
procedures under which 
charitable funds may be solicited 
in S.C. (1994 Act. No. 461) 



Annual Financial Reports & Extension Requests
Deliverable Nos. 5 & 6

 Annual financial reports are due 4 ½ 
months after the end of the 
charitable organization’s fiscal year.

 A charitable organization can 
request up to a six month extension 
to file their annual financial report.

24

Required by S.C. Code 
§§ 33-56-60, -60(A)

Customer: 
Charitable Organizations

Legislative Intent:
Regulate manner, conditions, 
and procedures under which 
charitable funds may be solicited 
in S.C. (1994 Act. No. 461) 



0

2,000

4,000

6,000

8,000

10,000

12,000

14,000

16,000

18,000

FY 2015-16 FY 2016-17 FY 2017-18 FY 2018-19

8,490 8,166
10,062 9,874

6,787 6,619

5,663 6,152

Number of Annual Financial Report and 
Extension Request Filings

Annual Financial Reports Extension Requests

15,277 14,785
15,725 16,026

25



State Payroll Deduction Application
Deliverable No. 7

These criteria include:
 Qualified to solicit under Solicitation 

of Charitable Funds Act.
 Provide direct and continuing 

services to South Carolinians.
 Tax exempt under Section 501(c)(3).
 Not a 501(c)(4), 501(c)(5), or 

501(c)(6) organization, or primarily 
engaged in the propagation of a 
religious faith, in lobbying, or in 
political activity.

 Non-discriminatory.
 Has neither a parent or subsidiary 

that fails to meet these 
qualifications.

The Division of Public 
Charities determines if a 
charitable organization 

meets the criteria to receive 
charitable contributions 
from state employees 

through payroll deduction.

26

Required by S.C. Code 
§ 8-11-92

Customer: 
Charitable Organizations; 
Comptroller General’s 
Office

Legislative Intent:
The Comptroller General, upon 
written authorization by any officer or 
employee, may deduct from the salary 
or wages of any such officer or 
employee contributions to be paid 
over to an eligible nonprofit charitable 
organization. (Section 8-11-91)



State Payroll Deduction Application
Deliverable No. 7

 Payroll deduction applications 
are due on September 1st of 
each year.

 In previous years, the sole 
applicant has been the United 
Way; however, the United Way 
and its chapters submit a list of 
participatory nonprofits which 
are verified by the Division of 
Public Charities.

27

Required by S.C. Code 
§ 8-11-92

Customer: 
Charitable Organizations; 
Comptroller General’s 
Office

Legislative Intent:
The Comptroller General, upon 
written authorization by any officer or 
employee, may deduct from the salary 
or wages of any such officer or 
employee contributions to be paid 
over to an eligible nonprofit charitable 
organization. (Section 8-11-91)



DIVISION OF PUBLIC CHARITIES:
FILINGS
Types of professional fundraisers include:

 Professional Solicitors

 Professional Solicitor Companies

 Individual Professional Solicitors

 Professional Fundraising Counsel

 Commercial Co-venturers

28



DIVISION OF PUBLIC CHARITIES:
FILINGS

What is considered a “professional solicitor” under the Solicitation of Charitable 
Funds Act?

 “Professional solicitor” is defined as a person that, for monetary 
consideration, solicits contributions for or on behalf of a charitable 
organization.

 “Professional solicitor” also means a person that plans, conducts, 
manages, carries on, advises, or acts as a consultant to a charitable 
organization in connection with the solicitation of contributions, but that 
does not qualify as a “professional fundraising counsel” under the 
Solicitation of Charitable Funds Act.

29



Common Types of Professional Solicitors on 
File with the Division of Public Charities

Telephone Solicitors Bingo Promoters Thrift Stores & 
Donation Bins

Door-to-Door
Commission-Based 

Fundraising Consultants

30



DIVISION OF PUBLIC CHARITIES:
FILINGS

What is considered a “professional fundraising counsel” under the Solicitation of 
Charitable Funds Act?

 A “professional fundraising counsel” is a person that for a fixed rate of 
compensation plans, conducts, manages, prepares materials for, 
advises, or acts as a consultant, directly or indirectly, in connection 
with soliciting contributions for or on behalf of a charitable 
organization, but that does not actually solicit contributions as a part 
of these services.

 A person whose compensation is computed on the basis of funds 
actually raised or to be raised is not a “professional fundraising 
counsel” under the Act. 

31



DIVISION OF PUBLIC CHARITIES:
FILINGS

What is considered a “commercial co-venturer” under the Solicitation of 
Charitable Funds Act?

 A “commercial co-venturer” is a person that regularly and primarily 
engages in trade or commerce for profit that, for the benefit of an 
organization, may raise funds by advertising that the purchase or use 
of goods, services, entertainment, or other thing of value benefits the 
charitable organization, if it is offered at a price comparable to 
similar goods or services on the market.  

32



DIVISION OF PUBLIC CHARITIES:
FILINGS
Types of filings for professional fundraisers include:

 Registration Applications 

 Notices of Solicitation & Contracts

 Joint Financial Reports

33



Type of Filing Professional 
Solicitor 
Company

Individual
Professional 

Solicitor

Professional 
Fundraising 

Counsel

Commercial 
Co-venturer

Registration 
Application

Yes Yes Yes Yes

Notice of 
Solicitation

Yes No No Yes

Contract Yes No Yes Yes

Joint Financial
Report

Yes No No Yes

Required Filings for Different Types of 
Professional Fundraisers

34



Registration Application for a Professional 
Solicitor Company
Deliverable No. 8
 The annual registration fee is 

$50.00.

 The registration application must 
be renewed each year that the 
professional solicitor is active in 
South Carolina.

 The application must include a 
$15,000.00 surety bond.

35

Required by S.C. Code 
§ 33-56-110

Customer: 
Professional Solicitor 
Companies

Legislative Intent:
Regulate manner, conditions, 
and procedures under which 
charitable funds may be solicited 
in S.C. (1994 Act. No. 461) 



Registration Application for an Individual 
Professional Solicitor
Deliverable No. 9
 Individual professional solicitors are 

registered by the professional 
solicitor company that employs them.

 The application must disclose certain 
criminal convictions (e.g. fraud) and 
affirm disclosure requirements of the 
Solicitation of Charitable Funds Act.

 The annual registration fee is $50.00.

 The registration application must be 
renewed each year that the 
professional solicitor is active in 
South Carolina.

36

Required by S.C. Code 
§ 33-56-110

Customer: 
Individual Professional 
Solicitors Employed by 
Professional Solicitor 
Companies

Legislative Intent:
Regulate manner, conditions, 
and procedures under which 
charitable funds may be solicited 
in S.C. (1994 Act. No. 461) 



Registration Application for a Professional 
Fundraising Counsel
Deliverable No. 10

 The annual registration fee is 
$50.00.

 The registration application must 
be renewed each year that the 
professional fundraising counsel is 
active in South Carolina.

37

Required by S.C. Code 
§ 33-56-110

Customer: 
Professional Fundraising  
Counsel

Legislative Intent:
Regulate manner, conditions, 
and procedures under which 
charitable funds may be solicited 
in S.C. (1994 Act. No. 461) 



Registration Application for a Commercial
Co-venturer 
Deliverable No. 11

 The annual registration fee is 
$50.00.

 The registration application must 
be renewed each year that the 
commercial co-venturer is active 
in South Carolina.

38

Required by S.C. Code 
§ 33-56-110

Customer: 
Commercial Co-venturers

Legislative Intent:
Regulate manner, conditions, 
and procedures under which 
charitable funds may be solicited 
in S.C. (1994 Act. No. 461) 



0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

1400

1600

1800

2000

FY 2015-16 FY 2016-17 FY 2017-18 FY 2018-19

111 105 105 103

1,380
1,246

933 919

226

221

225 241

264
280

294 310

Number of Professional Fundraisers 
Filing Registration Applications

Professional Solicitor Companies Individual Professional Solicitors

Professional Fundraising Counsel Commercial Co-venturers

1,981
1,852

1,557 1,573

39



Notices of Solicitation & Fundraising Contracts
Deliverable No. 12

 Professional solicitor companies, 
professional fundraising counsel, 
and commercial co-venturers 
must file copies of their 
fundraising contracts with the 
Division of Public Charities at 
least 10 days prior to beginning 
any solicitation activity or activity 
contemplated by the contract in 
South Carolina.  

40

Required by S.C. Code 
§ 33-56-70

Customer: 
Professional Solicitors; 
Professional Fundraising 
Counsel; Commercial Co-
venturers

Legislative Intent:
Regulate manner, conditions, 
and procedures under which 
charitable funds may be solicited 
in S.C. (1994 Act. No. 461) 



Notices of Solicitation & Fundraising Contracts
Deliverable No. 12

 Professional solicitor 
companies and commercial 
co-venturers must file a 
Notice of Solicitation along 
with their contract, which 
clearly states the nature of 
the solicitation campaign, 
dates of the solicitation 
campaign, and terms of 
payment and remittance 
under the contract.

41

Required by S.C. Code 
§ 33-56-70

Customer: 
Professional Solicitors; 
Professional Fundraising 
Counsel; Commercial Co-
venturers

Legislative Intent:
Regulate manner, conditions, 
and procedures under which 
charitable funds may be solicited 
in S.C. (1994 Act. No. 461) 



Joint Financial Reports
Deliverable No. 13

 Professional solicitor companies and 
commercial co-venturers must file a 
joint financial report with the Division of 
Public Charities within 90 days of the 
conclusion of a solicitation campaign, or 
within 90 days of the anniversary of a 
campaign lasting more than one year.

 The joint financial report must be signed 
by both the professional fundraiser and 
the charity, and include the following 
information:

 The gross receipts from the campaign;

 An itemization of expenses; and

 The amount paid to the charitable 
organization.

42

Required by S.C. Code 
§ 33-56-70

Customer: 
Professional Solicitors; 
Commercial Co-venturers

Legislative Intent:
Regulate manner, conditions, 
and procedures under which 
charitable funds may be solicited 
in S.C. (1994 Act. No. 461) 



0

500

1,000

1,500

2,000

2,500

3,000

FY 2015-16 FY 2016-17 FY 2017-18 FY 2018-19

1,568

1,139
1,401 1,268

1,286

1,103

1,174

1,017

Number of Filings of Contracts, Notices of Solicitation and
Joint Financial Reports

Contracts and Notices of Solicitation Joint Financial Reports

2,854

2,242
2,575

2,285

43



Filing Rejections
Deliverable No. 14

 If a filing for a charitable organization or professional fundraiser does not 
contain the information required under the Solicitation of Charitable Funds 
Act, then the Division of Public Charities will reject it.

 Division of Public Charities staff first contacts the organization by email to 
attempt to correct the issue.  

 If the organization does not respond, staff will return the filing to the 
organization along with a notice explaining the deficiency.  The notice 
requests that the organization correct the filing and return it to the Division 
of Public Charities within 15 days.

 Failure to correct and return the filing may result in the issuance of a notice 
of violation and/or administrative fine.

44

Provided under S.C. Code 
§§ 33-56-30, -50, -60, -70, 
-110, -140(D)

Customers: 
Charitable Organizations; 
Professional Solicitors; 
Professional Fundraising 
Counsel; Commercial Co-
venturers

Legislative Intent:
Regulate manner, conditions, 
and procedures under which 
charitable funds may be solicited 
in S.C. (1994 Act. No. 461) 



0

500

1,000

1,500

2,000

2,500

3,000

3,500

4,000

4,500

FY 2015-16 FY 2016-17 FY 2017-18 FY 2018-19

4,075

2,147

3,481

4,175

Total Number of Rejections of Filings under 
Solicitation of Charitable Funds Act

45



DIVISION OF PUBLIC CHARITIES:
ENFORCEMENT
 The Secretary of State has the 

authority to investigate charities, 
professional fundraisers, and other 
persons for violations of the 
Solicitation of Charitable Funds Act.

 The Secretary of State can issue 
investigative subpoenas, issue notices 
of violation and administrative fines, 
suspend charities and professional 
fundraisers, and file petitions for 
injunctive relief with the South 
Carolina Administrative Law Court.

46



Notice of Violation
Deliverable No. 15

 Once it has been determined that a violation of the Solicitation of 
Charitable Funds Act has occurred, the Division of Public Charities sends a 
Notice of Violation to the charitable organization or professional 
fundraiser alleged to have violated the Act. 

 The Notice of Violation is sent by certified mail to the charitable 
organization or professional fundraiser’s last known address.

 Upon receipt of the Notice of Violation, the organization or professional 
fundraiser has 15 days to remedy the violation.  

47

Required by S.C. Code 
§ 33-56-140(B)

Customers: 
Charitable Organizations; 
Professional Solicitors; 
Professional Fundraising 
Counsel; Commercial Co-
venturers

Legislative Intent:
Regulate manner, conditions, 
and procedures under which 
charitable funds may be solicited 
in S.C. (1994 Act. No. 461) 



Notice of Administration Fine
Deliverable No. 16

 If the charitable organization or professional fundraiser does not remedy 
the violation within 15 days of receipt of the notice, the Division of Public 
Charities issues a Notice of Administrative Fine against the charitable 
organization or professional fundraiser. 

 The Notice of Administrative Fine is sent by certified mail to the 
charitable organization or professional fundraiser’s last known address.

 Upon receipt of the Notice of Administrative Fine, the charitable 
organization or professional fundraiser has 30 days to pay the fine or file 
an appeal with the Administrative Law Court.  

48

Provided under S.C. Code 
§§ 33-56-60(E), -70(G), 
-75(D), -90(C), -110(H), 
-140(B) 

Customers: 
Charitable Organizations; 
Professional Solicitors; 
Professional Fundraising 
Counsel; Commercial Co-
venturers

Legislative Intent:
Regulate manner, conditions, 
and procedures under which 
charitable funds may be solicited 
in S.C. (1994 Act. No. 461) 



Notice of Administration Fine
Deliverable No. 16

 Under the Solicitation of Charitable Funds Act, the maximum fine is 
$2,000.00 for each separate violation.

 Fines for certain filing violations are calculated at a rate of $10.00 per 
day late, not to exceed $2,000.00. These violations include late annual 
financial reports, late professional fundraiser violations, late contracts, 
and late joint financial reports.

 For these fines, the Division of Public Charities will send an initial Notice of 
Administrative Fine that notifies the recipient that the fine has begun 
accruing.  Once the late filing is submitted or 200 days have passed (at which 
point the maximum fine of $2,000.00 is assessed), the Division of Public 
Charities will send a Notice of Administrative Fine Invoice.  

49

Provided under S.C. Code 
§§ 33-56-60(E), -70(G), 
-75(D), -90(C), -110(H), 
-140(B)

Customers: 
Charitable Organizations; 
Professional Solicitors; 
Professional Fundraising 
Counsel; Commercial Co-
venturers

Legislative Intent:
Regulate manner, conditions, 
and procedures under which 
charitable funds may be solicited 
in S.C. (1994 Act. No. 461) 



Notice of Suspension
Deliverable No. 17

 If the charitable organization or professional fundraiser does not pay the 
fine or file an appeal with the Administrative Law Court, the Division of 
Public Charities issues a Notice of Suspension to the charitable 
organization or professional fundraiser. 

 The Notice of Suspension is sent by certified mail to the charitable 
organization or professional fundraiser’s last known address.

 Upon receipt of the Notice of Suspension, the charitable organization or 
professional fundraiser has 30 days to file an appeal with the 
Administrative Law Court.  

50

Provided under S.C. Code 
§ 33-56-140(E)

Customers: 
Charitable Organizations; 
Professional Solicitors; 
Professional Fundraising 
Counsel; Commercial Co-
venturers

Legislative Intent:
Regulate manner, conditions, 
and procedures under which 
charitable funds may be solicited 
in S.C. (1994 Act. No. 461) 



Notice of 
Violation

•An organization has 
15 days after receipt 
of the Notice of 
Violation to cease or 
remedy the violation 
before a fine is 
issued.

Notice of 
Administrative 

Fine

•Upon receipt of the 
Notice of Fine, the 
organization has 30 days 
to pay the fine or file an 
appeal with the 
Administrative Law 
Court.

Notice of 
Suspension

• If the organization 
does not pay the 
fine or file an 
appeal, the Division 
of Public Charities 
may suspend its 
registration.

51



0

500

1,000

1,500

2,000

2,500

3,000

3,500

4,000

FY 2015-16 FY 2016-17 FY 2017-18 FY 2018-19

3,419
3,293

3,561

3,948

1,690
1,941

2,113 2,022

394 451 482
607

Number of Notices Issued Against 
Charitable Organizations and Professional Fundraisers

Notices of Violation Notices of Fine Notices of Suspension

52



0

50,000

100,000

150,000

200,000

250,000

300,000

350,000

400,000

FY 2015-16 FY 2016-17 FY 2017-18 FY 2018-19

$277,180 $282,190
$301,182

$371,670

Total Fine Revenue Collected from Enforcement of 
Solicitation of Charitable Funds Act

53



Appeal of Administrative Action
Deliverable No. 18

Appeals Filed under Solicitation of 
Charitable Funds Act

FY 2015-16 FY 2016-17 FY 2017-18 FY 2018-19

32

1
2

54

A charitable organization, professional 
fundraiser, or other person who has 

been assessed an administrative fine, 
or who has had their registration 

suspended or rejected, may file an 
appeal with the Administrative Law 

Court within 30 days of receipt of the 
certified notice.

Provided under S.C. 
Code § 33-56-140(E)

Customers: 
Charitable 
Organizations; 
Professional Solicitors; 
Professional 
Fundraising Counsel; 
Commercial Co-
venturers; Other 
Persons Assessed a 
Fine or Had 
Registration 
Suspended or Rejected

Legislative Intent:
Regulate manner, conditions, 
and procedures under which 
charitable funds may be 
solicited in S.C. (1994 Act. 
No. 461) 



Petition for Injunctive Relief
Deliverable No. 19

The Secretary of State may bring an 
action before the Administrative Law 

Court to enjoin a charitable organization, 
professional fundraiser, or other person 

from violating the Solicitation of 
Charitable Funds Act, or against a 

charitable organization or professional 
fundraiser who has been suspended for 
failure to pay an administrative fine.

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

FY 2015-16 FY 2016-17 FY 2017-18 FY 2018-19

Number of Injunctions Filed

55

Provided under S.C. 
Code §§ 33-56-140(C), 
-140(E)

Customers: 
Charitable 
Organizations; 
Professional Solicitors; 
Professional 
Fundraising Counsel; 
Commercial Co-
venturers; Other 
Persons Who Have 
Violated Solicitation of 
Charitable Funds Act

Legislative Intent:
Regulate manner, conditions, 
and procedures under which 
charitable funds may be 
solicited in S.C. (1994 Act. 
No. 461) 



Charitable Solicitation Complaint Form
Deliverable No. 20

► In May 2017, the Secretary of State launched its online charitable 
solicitation complaint form, in order to make it easier for 
customers to file a complaint regarding a charitable organization, 
professional fundraiser, or nonprofit raffle.

► Customers may also print out a paper form and mail it to the 
Secretary of State’s Office.

56

Provided under S.C. Code 
§§ 33-56-140(A), -160(A), 
§ 33-57-160(A)

Customers: 
General Public

Legislative Intent:
Regulate manner, conditions, 
and procedures under which 
charitable funds may be 
solicited in S.C. (1994 Act. No. 
461); Only qualified tax-exempt 
entities, which are organized 
and operated for charitable 
purposes and which dedicate 
raffle proceeds to charitable 
purposes, shall operate and 
conduct raffles. [Section 33-57-
100(B)]



0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

FY 2016-17 FY 2017-18 FY 2018-19

14

78
82

Number of Complaints Received through the 
Online Charitable Solicitation Complaint Form

57



Investigations of Charitable Organizations & 
Professional Fundraisers
Deliverable No. 21

► In addition to receiving complaints through the online system, the 
Investigations Division receives and investigates inquiries from law 
enforcement, other state and federal agencies, and the media.

► The Investigations Division also reviews and audits the following to 
determine whether organizations are in violation of the registration 
requirements of the Solicitation of Charitable Funds Act:
► IRS Exempt Organization Master List
► Newly Formed Nonprofit Corporations
► Expired Charity List
► Suspended Charity List
► Media Reports

58

Provided under S.C. Code 
§ 33-56-140(A)

Customers: 
Charitable Organizations; 
Professional Solicitors; 
Professional Fundraising 
Counsel; Commercial Co-
venturers

Legislative Intent:
Regulate manner, conditions, 
and procedures under which 
charitable funds may be 
solicited in S.C. (1994 Act. No. 
461) 



0

100

200

300

400

500

600

FY 2015-16 FY 2016-17 FY 2017-18 FY 2018-19

170
197

537 544

Number of Investigations Opened 

59



Investigative Subpoenas
Deliverable No. 22

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

16

18

20

FY 2015-16 FY 2016-17 FY 2017-18 FY 2018-19

Number of Subpoenas Issued

The Secretary of State may 
subpoena or audit persons and 

require the production of 
documents to aid in the 

investigation of alleged violations 
of the Solicitation of Charitable 

Funds Act.

60

Provided under S.C. Code 
§ 33-56-140(A)

Customers: 
Charitable Organizations; 
Professional Fundraisers; 
Other Persons Providing 
Services to Organizations 
Engaged in Charitable 
Solicitation

Legislative Intent:
Regulate manner, conditions, 
and procedures under which 
charitable funds may be solicited 
in S.C. (1994 Act. No. 461) 



Multistate Enforcement Actions & Initiatives
Deliverable No. 23

 Under Section 33-56-190, the 
Secretary of State may share 
information and engage in joint 
enforcement actions and public 
information initiatives with other 
states and agencies.

 Because multiple states can pool 
resources and reach wider 
audiences, multistate actions make 
a greater impact in combating 
charitable solicitation fraud.

61

Provided under S.C. Code 
§ 33-56-190

Customers: 
Other State and Federal 
Agencies; General Public; 
Charitable Organizations; 
Professional Fundraisers

Legislative Intent:
Regulate manner, conditions, 
and procedures under which 
charitable funds may be solicited 
in S.C. (1994 Act. No. 461) 



Two recent multistate actions involving all 50 
states, the District of Columbia, the Federal 
Trade Commission and other U.S. Territories 
were the Cancer Fund of America Multistate 
(announced in 2015) and Operation Donate 

with Honor (announced in 2018).

62



3

5

4

5

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

FY 2015-16 FY 2016-17 FY 2017-18 FY 2018-19

Multistate Enforcement Actions and Public Education Initiatives

*Some multistate actions spanned more than one fiscal year.

63



Referral of Violations to Attorney General
Deliverable Nos. 24 & 25

 Under Provisos 96.2 and 96.3, the Secretary of State must refer disclosure and 
misrepresentation violations that result in fines of $10,000.00 or more to the 
Attorney General.

 Given the existing working relationship between the two agencies, the 
Secretary of State’s Office does not believe this mandate is needed.  Staff 
members of both agencies frequently communicate about issues involving 
charitable organizations and nonprofits, and the Secretary of State refers any 
case that may require criminal investigation to the Attorney General, 
regardless of whether our office has issued a fine under the Solicitation of 
Charitable Funds Act.

 Since they were first enacted in 2014, only one case has met the criteria for 
referral under the provisos.  The case arose in 2014 and did not result in 
criminal prosecution.

64

Required by Provisos 96.2 
and 96.3; S.C. Code §§ 33-
56-90, -120

Customer: 
Attorney General 

Legislative Intent:
Regulate manner, conditions, 
and procedures under which 
charitable funds may be solicited 
in S.C. (1994 Act. No. 461) 



Bingo Report to Department of Revenue
Deliverable No. 26

 In order to assist the Department of 
Revenue with enforcement of the 
Bingo Tax Act (Section 12-21-3910 et. 
seq.), the Division of Public Charities 
sends a monthly report on the 
registration status of charitable 
organizations and professional 
solicitors engaged in charitable bingo.

 Bingo promoters that conduct bingo 
games for charitable organizations 
must be registered with the Division 
of Public Charities as a professional 
solicitor.

65

Provided under S.C. Code 
§ 33-56-80

Customer: 
Department of Revenue

Legislative Intent:
Regulate manner, conditions, 
and procedures under which 
charitable funds may be solicited 
in S.C. (1994 Act. No. 461) 



DIVISION OF PUBLIC CHARITIES:
PUBLIC EDUCATION

 Under Section 33-56-80, the Secretary 
of State is required to publish and 
disseminate information to the public 
regarding the requirements and 
enforcement of the Solicitation of 
Charitable Funds Act.

 Educating potential donors about 
wise charitable giving is one of the 
best ways to combat charity fraud.

66



Charity Search Engine & Suspended List
Deliverable Nos. 27 & 28

 The Secretary of State’s Office provides a Charity Search feature on its 
website that indicates whether a charity is registered to solicit in South 
Carolina, and provides financial data from the charity’s last annual financial 
report.

 The Secretary of State also provides a list of suspended charities that is 
updated daily.

67

Provided under S.C. Code 
§ 33-56-80

Customer: 
General Public

Legislative Intent:
Regulate manner, conditions, 
and procedures under which 
charitable funds may be solicited 
in S.C. (1994 Act. No. 461) 



0

5,000

10,000

15,000

20,000

25,000

30,000

Charity Search Engine Suspended List

27,140

3,259

Number of Unique Pageviews in FY 2017-18 
According to Google Analytics

68



Angel Announcement
Deliverable No. 29

 Every year, Secretary Hammond 
recognizes 10 “Angel” charities in order 
to raise awareness about wise 
charitable giving.

 In order to be recognized as an Angel, a 
charity must meet the following 
criteria:

 The charity must devote 80% or more of 
its expenses to program services.

 The charity must have been in existence 
for three or more years.

 The charity must make good use of 
volunteer services and not rely heavily 
on grants.

 The charity must be in compliance with 
the Solicitation of Charitable Funds Act.

69

Provided under S.C. Code 
§ 33-56-80

Customer: 
General Public

Legislative Intent:
Regulate manner, conditions, 
and procedures under which 
charitable funds may be solicited 
in S.C. (1994 Act. No. 461) 



Wise Giving & Professional Solicitor Report
Deliverable No. 30

 In conjunction with the Angel 
Announcement, the Secretary of 
State’s Office releases a “Wise 
Giving & Professional Solicitor 
Report.”  

 The report provides financial 
data on all joint financial reports 
filed by professional solicitors in 
the preceding calendar year, as 
well as data from current 
fundraising contracts.

70

Provided under S.C. Code 
§ 33-56-80

Customer: 
General Public

Legislative Intent:
Regulate manner, conditions, 
and procedures under which 
charitable funds may be solicited 
in S.C. (1994 Act. No. 461) 



71



72



Wise Charitable Giving Brochure
Deliverable No. 31

The Secretary of State’s 
Office distributes a Wise 

Charitable Giving brochure 
at public speaking 

engagements, and provides 
copies in its lobby and on 

its website.

73

Provided under S.C. Code 
§ 33-56-80

Customer: 
General Public

Legislative Intent:
Regulate manner, conditions, 
and procedures under which 
charitable funds may be solicited 
in S.C. (1994 Act. No. 461) 



Wise Charitable Giving Public Service Announcement
Deliverable No. 32

 During the holiday season, the 
Secretary of State’s Office runs 
public service announcements on 
television and radio to raise 
awareness about wise charitable 
giving.

 The public service 
announcements also notify 
viewers and listeners that they 
may file a complaint with the 
Secretary of State’s Office using 
the Online Charitable Solicitation 
Complaint form.

74

Provided under S.C. Code 
§ 33-56-80

Customer: 
General Public

Legislative Intent:
Regulate manner, conditions, 
and procedures under which 
charitable funds may be solicited 
in S.C. (1994 Act. No. 461) 



Wise Charitable Giving Presentations
Deliverable No. 33

 Each year, the Secretary of State’s 
Office conducts wise charitable 
giving presentations throughout 
the state.

 Audiences include professional 
associations, civic groups, social 
clubs and other organizations with 
an interest in the Solicitation of 
Charitable Funds Act.

75

Provided under S.C. Code 
§ 33-56-80; § 33-57-110, 
-120, -130, -140, -150, -
160 

Customers: 
General Public; 
Professional Associations; 
Civic Organizations; Other 
Entities 

Legislative Intent:
Regulate manner, conditions, 
and procedures under which 
charitable funds may be solicited 
in S.C. (1994 Act. No. 461); Only 
qualified tax-exempt entities, 
which are organized and 
operated for charitable purposes 
and which dedicate raffle 
proceeds to charitable purposes, 
shall operate and conduct 
raffles. [Section 33-57-100(B)]



DIVISION OF PUBLIC CHARITIES:
RAFFLES

 In addition to administering the 
Solicitation of Charitable Funds Act, the 
Division of Public Charities also regulates 
nonprofit raffles for charitable purposes, 
as provided under Chapter 57, Title 33 
(S.C. Code of Laws § 33-57-100, et. seq.)

76



DIVISION OF PUBLIC CHARITIES:
RAFFLES

 On November 4, 2014, South 
Carolina voters approved an 
amendment to the state 
constitution to allow nonprofit 
organizations to conduct raffles for 
charitable purposes. 

 On March 5, 2015, the General 
Assembly ratified the 
constitutional amendment, and 
qualified nonprofits were able to 
legally hold raffles beginning on 
April 4, 2015.

77



DIVISION OF PUBLIC CHARITIES:
RAFFLES

 Section 33-57-110 defines “raffle” as a game of chance in which a participant 
is required to pay something of value for a ticket for a chance to win a prize, 
and the winner is determined by a random drawing or similar process in which 
all participants have an equal chance of winning.  

78



DIVISION OF PUBLIC CHARITIES:
RAFFLES

 In order to hold a raffle, a nonprofit organization must be:

 A tax-exempt organization, or an organization of an educational institution;

 Operated for a charitable purpose; and

 In compliance with the Solicitation of Charitable Funds Act.

 A nonprofit organization must meet all three of these criteria to legally 
conduct raffles in South Carolina.

79



DIVISION OF PUBLIC CHARITIES:
RAFFLES

 Nonprofit organizations which intend to conduct raffles may be required to 
register and file annual raffle financial reports with the Secretary of State.

 Whether registration is required depends on the types of raffles the 
organization conducts.

 For purposes of filing requirements, South Carolina law categorizes raffles as 
either exempt or nonexempt.

80



81



Nonprofit Raffle Annual Registration Form
Deliverable No. 34

 If a nonprofit organization 
intends to conduct a nonexempt 
raffle, then it must file a raffle 
registration form.  

 The annual registration fee is 
$50.00.

 The raffle registration will expire 
4 ½ months after the end of the 
nonprofit organization’s fiscal 
year.

82

Legislative Intent: 
Only qualified tax-exempt entities, 
which are organized and operated for 
charitable purposes and which 
dedicate raffle proceeds to charitable 
purposes, shall operate and conduct 
raffles. [Section 33-57-100(B)]

Required by S.C. Code 
§ 33-57-120

Customers: 
Nonprofit Organizations



Nonprofit Raffle Annual Financial Report
Deliverable No. 35

 A nonprofit organization that 
registers to conduct nonprofit 
raffles must also file a raffle 
financial report.  

 The raffle financial report is 
due 4 ½ months after the end 
of the nonprofit organization’s 
fiscal year.

 There is no filing fee required 
to submit the raffle financial 
report.

83

Required by S.C. Code 
§ 33-57-150

Customers: 
Nonprofit Organizations

Legislative Intent: 
Only qualified tax-exempt entities, 
which are organized and operated for 
charitable purposes and which 
dedicate raffle proceeds to charitable 
purposes, shall operate and conduct 
raffles. [Section 33-57-100(B)]



0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

1400

1600

FY 2015-16 FY 2016-17 FY 2017-18 FY 2018-19

450
545

639
747

166

534

763
683

Total Number of Raffle Filings

Raffle Registration Forms Raffle Financial Reports

1,079

1,402 1,430

84

616



Nonprofit Raffle Filing Rejection
Deliverable No. 36

 If a nonprofit organization or 
other person files a raffle 
registration, but does not meet 
the statutory requirements to 
conduct raffles, then the 
Division of Public Charities will 
reject the filing.

58

38

31

20

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

FY 2015-16 FY 2016-17 FY 2017-18 FY 2018-19

Raffle Rejections

Raffle Rejections

85

Provided under S.C. Code 
§§ 33-57-120(C), -150(C), -
160(C)

Customers: 
Nonprofit Organizations; 
Persons Operating Raffles 
for Charitable Purposes

Legislative Intent: 
Only qualified tax-exempt 
entities, which are organized 
and operated for charitable 
purposes and which dedicate 
raffle proceeds to charitable 
purposes, shall operate and 
conduct raffles. [Section 33-57-
100(B)]



Nonprofit Raffle Notice of Administrative Fine & 
Notice of Suspension
Deliverable Nos. 37 & 38

 An organization which fails to file its annual raffle financial report on time 
may be assessed by the Secretary of State an administrative fine of $10.00 for 
each day of noncompliance, not to exceed $2,000.00 for each separate 
violation.

 The Secretary of State may impose administrative fines of up to $500.00 
and/or seek injunctive relief for any other violations of the statutory 
provisions governing raffles.  The Secretary of State may assess an 
administrative fine of up to $500.00 for each violation and each day a person 
or organization is in violation of the law. 

 Failure to pay the fine and/or file the report may result in revocation of the 
organization’s registration.

86

Provided under S.C. Code 
§§ 33-57-120, -130, -140, 
-150, -160(B), -160(C)

Customers: 
Nonprofit Organizations; 
Persons Operating Raffles 
for Charitable Purposes

Legislative Intent: 
Only qualified tax-exempt 
entities, which are organized 
and operated for charitable 
purposes and which dedicate 
raffle proceeds to charitable 
purposes, shall operate and 
conduct raffles. [Section 33-57-
100(B)]



0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

400

450

FY 2015-16 FY 2016-17 FY 2017-18 FY 2018-19

11

151

187

419

2 1
16 16

Number of Notices Issued for Raffle Violations

Notices of Fine Notices of Suspension

87



0

2,000

4,000

6,000

8,000

10,000

12,000

FY 2015-16 FY 2016-17 FY 2017-18 FY 2018-19

$1,250

$10,790

$6,370

$10,240

Total Fine Revenue Collected for Raffle Violations

88



Nonprofit Raffle Appeals & Petitions for Injunctive Relief
Deliverable Nos. 39 & 40

 If a person or organization is 
assessed an administrative fine, 
has its registration suspended or 
revoked, or is denied registration 
by the Secretary of State, that 
person or organization has 30 days 
to file an appeal with the 
Administrative Law Court.

 The Secretary of State may also 
pursue injunctive relief against 
nonprofit organizations in the 
Administrative Law Court.

89

Provided under S.C. Code 
§§ 33-57-160(B), -160(C)

Customers: 
Nonprofit Organizations; 
Persons Operating Raffles 
for Charitable Purposes; 
Other Persons Who Have 
Been Assessed a Fine or 
Had Registration 
Suspended, Revoked or 
Rejected

Legislative Intent: 
Only qualified tax-exempt 
entities, which are organized 
and operated for charitable 
purposes and which dedicate 
raffle proceeds to charitable 
purposes, shall operate and 
conduct raffles. [Section 33-57-
100(B)]



Nonprofit Raffle Investigations & Investigative Subpoenas
Deliverable Nos. 41 & 42

 The Secretary of State may investigate 
nonprofit organizations to determine if they 
have violated the provisions of Chapter 57, 
Title 33, or have filed false information 
with the Division of Public Charities.  

 Investigations may result from complaints 
received from the public, law enforcement, 
other state or federal agencies (including 
charity regulators), and media inquiries and 
reports.

 The Secretary of State may subpoena or 
audit persons and organizations and require 
the production of documents to aid in the 
investigation of alleged violations of 
Chapter 57, Title 33.

11

15

10

20

0 0
1

2
0

5

10

15

20

25

FY 2015-16 FY 2016-17 FY 2017-18 FY 2018-19

Raffle Investigations Subpoenas Issued

90

Provided under S.C. Code 
§ 33-57-160(A)

Customers: 
Nonprofit Organizations; 
Persons Operating Raffles 
for Charitable Purposes

Legislative Intent: 
Only qualified tax-exempt 
entities, which are organized and 
operated for charitable purposes 
and which dedicate raffle 
proceeds to charitable purposes, 
shall operate and conduct raffles. 
[Section 33-57-100(B)]



Nonprofit Raffle Public Education—Brochure & Webinar
Deliverable Nos. 43 & 44

 In order to educate the public 
about nonprofit raffles, the 
Secretary of State provides a 
raffles webinar on its website 
and distributes a raffles 
brochure at public speaking 
engagements, in its lobby, and 
on its website.

 Information on raffles is also 
provided at wise charitable 
giving presentations, as well 
as presentations to the 
nonprofit community.

91

Legislative Intent: 
Only qualified tax-exempt 
entities, which are organized and 
operated for charitable purposes 
and which dedicate raffle 
proceeds to charitable purposes, 
shall operate and conduct raffles. 
[Section 33-57-100(B)]

Provided under S.C. Code 
§§ 33-57-110, -120, -130, 
-140, -150, -160

Customers: 
Nonprofit Organizations; 
General Public



Nonprofit Raffles Sunset Provision

 The provisions of Chapter 57 of 
Title 33 will be repealed on July 
1, 2020 unless the General 
Assembly reauthorizes the 
provisions by joint resolution.

 There are bills currently pending 
to repeal the sunset provision in 
both the House and the Senate:

 H. 4353

 S. 719

92



Performance Measures Related to 
Charities Deliverables

 Performance Measure No. 1: Provide charity customers expanded 
accessibility 24/7 on mobile devices and upgraded online capabilities.

 Performance Measure No. 4: Protect data and records and provide staff 
additional tools to fulfill statutory duties. (Create centralized 
investigations database application for charities, professional fundraisers, 
raffles, investigations and trademark violations.)

 Performance Measure No. 6: Participate in multi-state enforcement 
actions to protect the citizens of the state.

 Performance Measure No. 7: Provide trainings to charity and raffle groups 
statewide.

93



Performance Measures Related to 
Charities Deliverables

 Performance Measure No. 8: Publish additional reports on the agency 
website to educate and protect charitable donors.

 Performance Measure No. 9: Develop educational material for target 
areas concerning charitable solicitation.

 Performance Measure No. 10: Protect charitable donors in the state 
through filing injunctions against noncompliant organizations.

94



Performance Measure No. 1:
Provide charity customers expanded accessibility 24/7 on 
mobile devices and upgraded online capabilities.

 Over the past few years, the Secretary of State has initiated and 
implemented several upgrades and enhancements to its charities online filing 
system, which was launched in 2009.  These upgrades and enhancements have 
included the following:

 Enhancements to make the online filing system more user friendly, reduce the 
number of filing errors, and implement legislative changes enacted in FY 2013-14 
(project initiated in FY 2013-14 and completed in FY 2014-15).

 Update charities database and system to accommodate nonprofit raffles legislation 
passed in FY 2014-15 (project initiated in FY 2014-15 and completed in FY 2015-
16).

 Provide an online charitable solicitation complaint form to allow members of the 
public to file confidential complaints through the Secretary of State’s website. 
(project initiated in FY 2015-16 and completed in FY 2016-17).

95



Performance Measure No. 1:
Provide charity customers expanded accessibility 24/7 on 
mobile devices and upgraded online capabilities.

 Over the past few years, the Secretary of State has initiated and 
implemented several upgrades and enhancements to its charities online filing 
system, which was launched in 2009.  These upgrades and enhancements have 
included the following:

 Enhancements to provide streamlined options for online filers to upload required 
documents, as well as a PDF of online registration forms (project initiated and 
completed in FY 2016-17).

 Enhancements to provide charities, professional fundraisers, and raffles access to 
update records 24/7 through creation of an online account, and provide 
letters/correspondence from Public Charities Division in an universally-readable 
format (project initiated in FY 2016-17 and completed in FY 2018-19).

 Enhancements are currently in process to provide mobile phone and tablet 
compatibility for online customers (project initiated in FY 2018-19).

96



Performance Measure No. 1:
Provide charity customers expanded accessibility 24/7 on 
mobile devices and upgraded online capabilities.

46% 47%
50%

53%
58% 60%

27% 27%

33%
37%

42%

50%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

FY 2013-14 FY 2014-15 FY 2015-16 FY 2016-17 FY 2017-18 FY 2018-19

Percentage of Charities Filings Submitted Online

Registrations Annual Financial Reports

97



Performance Measure No. 1:
Provide charity customers expanded accessibility 24/7 on 
mobile devices and upgraded online capabilities.

16% 17%

26% 26%

31%

38%

8%
6% 7%

16%

22%

28%

12%
9%

11%

16%

27%

33%

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

35%

40%

FY 2013-14 FY 2014-15 FY 2015-16 FY 2016-17 FY 2017-18 FY 2018-19

Percentage of Professional Fundraiser Filings Submitted Online

Registrations Contracts Joint Financial Reports

98



Performance Measure No. 1:
Provide charity customers expanded accessibility 24/7 on 
mobile devices and upgraded online capabilities.

15%

31%

39%

49%

59%

0

18%

41%
42%

50%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

FY 2014-15 FY 2015-16 FY 2016-17 FY 2017-18 FY 2018-19

Percentage of Raffles Filings Submitted Online

Registrations Annual Financial Reports

99



Performance Measure No. 4: Protect data and records and 
provide staff additional tools to fulfill statutory duties. 
(Create centralized investigations database application for 
charities, professional fundraisers, raffles, investigations and 
trademark violations.)

 In FY 2017-18, a new investigations application was launched.  This 
application provided a centralized database for investigative staff to track 
charities, professional fundraisers, and raffles investigations.  Development of 
the application began in FY 2016-17.

100



Performance Measure No. 6: Participate in multi-state 
enforcement actions to protect the citizens of the state.

3 3

2

3

2

1

3

5

4

5

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

FY 2014-15 FY 2015-16 FY 2016-17 FY 2017-18 FY 2018-19

Number of Multistate Actions

Target Actual

101
*Some multistate actions spanned several fiscal years. Also, this performance 
measure did not exist in FY 2013-14. 



Performance Measure No. 7: Provide trainings to charity and 
raffle groups statewide.

30

38 38
35 36

15

20

34
31

35

17

14

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

FY 2013-14 FY 2014-15 FY 2015-16 FY 2016-17 FY 2017-18 FY 2018-19

Number of Charities and Raffles Presentations

Target Actual

102



Performance Measure No. 8: Publish additional reports on 
the agency website to educate and protect charitable 
donors.

 In order to provide charitable donors as much information as possible to make 
wise giving decisions, the Secretary of State provides the following 
information on its website:

 Charity search engine, which provides registration status and a snapshot of 
financial information provided in the most recent annual financial report

 List of suspended charities that is updated daily

 Wise Giving & Professional Solicitor Report (first published in FY 2015-16)

103



Performance Measure No. 8: Publish additional reports on 
the agency website to educate and protect charitable 
donors.

 With the launch of its updated website in August 2019, the Secretary of 
State’s Office now provides the following additional information:

 PDF copies of the most recently filed financial reports for charities, professional 
fundraisers, and raffles

 Terms of remuneration from professional fundraiser contracts

 List of suspended professional fundraisers that is updated daily

 List of suspended raffles that is updated daily

104



Performance Measure No. 9: Develop educational material 
for target areas concerning charitable solicitation.

 The Secretary of State’s Office provides information on its website to educate 
donors on wise charitable giving, as well as charitable organizations on 
statutory requirements for filing.  

 In recent years, the Secretary of State’s Office has published and distributed 
educational brochures on wise charitable giving and raffles.

 In FY 2015-16, the Secretary of State published a raffles webinar on its 
website in order to educate nonprofit organizations and members of the 
public on statutory requirements for nonprofit raffles.

105



Performance Measure No. 10: Protect charitable donors in the 
state through filing injunctions against noncompliant 
organizations.

0

5
6

12

1

5

7

12

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

FY 2015-16 FY 2016-17 FY 2017-18 FY 2018-19

Number of Injunctions Filed

Target Actual

106



Revenue & Costs Related to Charities 
Deliverables

 Registration fees for charitable 
organizations ($50.00*)

 Registration fees for 
professional fundraisers 
($50.00*)

 Administrative fines for 
violations of Solicitation of 
Charitable Funds Act (up to 
$2,000.00 per violation*)

 Registration fees for nonprofit 
raffles ($50.00)

 Administrative fines for 
violations of Chapter 57, Title 
33 (Nonprofit Raffles for 
Charitable Purposes) ($500.00 
per violation or up to $2,000.00 
for late financial reports)

107

The Division of Public Charities collects fee and fine revenue 
from the following sources:

*Amount of fees and fines have not increased since the initial passage of the South 
Carolina Solicitation of Charitable Funds Act in 1994. (1994 Act. No. 461)



440,000

460,000

480,000

500,000

520,000

540,000

560,000

$482,300

$490,500

$538,050

$558,400

Registration Fees Collected from Charitable Organizations

FY 2015-16 FY 2016-17 FY 2017-18 FY 2018-19

108



0

10,000

20,000

30,000

40,000

50,000

60,000

70,000

80,000

90,000

100,000

FY 2015-16 FY 2016-17 FY 2017-18 FY 2018-19

$5,550 $5,250 $5,250 $5,150

$69,000
$62,300

$46,650 $45,950

$11,300

$11,050

$11,250 $12,050

$13,200

$14,000

$14,700 $15,500

Registration Fees Collected from Professional Fundraisers

Professional Solicitor Companies Individual Professional Solicitors

Professional Fundraising Counsel Commercial Co-venturers

$92,600

$77,850

109

$99,050

$78,650



0

50,000

100,000

150,000

200,000

250,000

300,000

350,000

400,000

FY 2015-16 FY 2016-17 FY 2017-18 FY 2018-19

$277,180 $282,190
$301,182

$371,670

Total Fine Revenue Collected from Enforcement of 
Solicitation of Charitable Funds Act

110



0

5,000

10,000

15,000

20,000

25,000

30,000

35,000

40,000

FY 2015-16 FY 2016-17 FY 2017-18 FY 2018-19

$22,250

$27,250

$31,950

$37,350

Registration Fees Collected from Nonprofit Raffles

Raffle Registration Forms

111



0

2,000

4,000

6,000

8,000

10,000

12,000

FY 2015-16 FY 2016-17 FY 2017-18 FY 2018-19

$1,250

$10,790

$6,370

$10,240

Total Fine Revenue Collected for Raffle Violations

112



113

0

200,000

400,000

600,000

800,000

1,000,000

1,200,000

FY 2015-16 FY 2016-17 FY 2017-18 FY 2018-19

$882,030 $903,330
$955,402

$1,056,310

$394,174
$430,595

$515,294 $488,881

Comparison of Fee and Fine Revenue Collected by Public 
Charities Division with Costs (Excluding Agency Operations)

Revenue Costs Excluding Agency Operations



Suggested Law Changes Related to 
Charities Deliverables

 In addition to the deletion of Provisos 96.2 and 96.3 
(Deliverable Nos. 24 and 25), the Secretary of State 
recommends the following:

 Repeal of Section 1-7-117 (Duties of Division of Public 
Charities devolved upon Attorney General)

 Repeal of Regulation 102.1 (Fees to Accompany Request 
for Confirmation of Solicitation Exemption)

114



INVESTIGATIONS & TRADEMARKS DIVISION

 The Investigations & Trademarks Division fulfills the following duties in the 
Secretary of State’s Office:

 Charities Enforcement & Public Education

 Counterfeit Goods Enforcement, Training & Public Education

 Rejection of Sovereign Citizen Documents

 Investigation of Violations of the Private Personnel Placement Services Act 
(Employment Agencies)

 Investigation of Special Purpose District Filing Delinquencies

 Trademark & Service Mark Registrations

 Livestock Brand & Earmark Registrations

115



Counterfeit Goods Enforcement, 
Training & Public Education

 Investigators with the Secretary of State’s Office 
have been given jurisdiction under Section 39-
15-1190 to conduct investigations into 
distribution of counterfeit goods and trademark 
violations, either independently or jointly with 
other law enforcement entities, throughout the 
state of South Carolina. 

 Investigators with the Secretary of State are not 
commissioned law enforcement agents and will 
refer any criminal evidence findings to the 
appropriate authorities so they can initiate the 
actions they deem appropriate.

116



Why Counterfeit Enforcement Matters

 Counterfeit goods can and have caused 
harm to consumers.  This includes injuries 
from counterfeit medications, electrical 
equipment, and other devices that must 
adhere to regulated safety standards in 
the normal course of business. 

 Counterfeit goods cause economic harm 
by stealing intellectual property from 
manufacturers, depriving communities of 
tax revenue, and defrauding unsuspecting 
consumers.

 The sale of counterfeit goods funds 
terrorist groups and organized criminal 
networks. 

117



Investigation of Distribution, Trafficking &
Production of Counterfeit Marks
Deliverable No. 45

How Secretary of State’s Office investigators participate in counterfeit 
investigations:

 Our investigators have received numerous hours of classroom and field 
training in the identification of counterfeit merchandise, and we are 
constantly receiving updates on new security features as they are added. 
Law enforcement agencies call on that expertise whenever they come across 
items they believe to be counterfeit. 

 Our investigators can get law enforcement the probable cause they need to 
obtain search warrants. This includes assisting in undercover operations by 
making buys. 

118

Provided under S.C. Code 
§ 39-15-1190

Customers: 
Law Enforcement 
Agencies; Solicitors; 
Department of Revenue

Legislative Intent: To provide a 
system of state trademark 
registration and protection 
substantially consistent with the 
federal system of trademark 
registration and protection. 
(Section 4, 1994 Act No. 486)



Investigation of Distribution, Trafficking &
Production of Counterfeit Marks
Deliverable No. 45

How Secretary of State’s Office investigators participate in counterfeit 
investigations:

 Our investigators assist with the inventorying of seized merchandise. We not 
only provide extra manpower, but can also differentiate between what is 
real and what is counterfeit.  This ensures that only counterfeit is seized and 
the integrity of the case will remain intact.

 Criminal charges are determined by the retail value of what the 
counterfeited item would sell for if it was a real item being sold. Our office 
provides an MSRP letter and an attachment breaking down the pricing for 
each item to agencies that pursue criminal prosecution.

119

Provided under S.C. Code 
§ 39-15-1190

Customers: 
Law Enforcement 
Agencies; Solicitors; 
Department of Revenue

Legislative Intent: To provide a 
system of state trademark 
registration and protection 
substantially consistent with the 
federal system of trademark 
registration and protection. 
(Section 4, 1994 Act No. 486)



Investigation of Distribution, Trafficking & 
Production of Counterfeit Marks
Deliverable No. 45

How Secretary of State’s Office investigators participate in counterfeit 
investigations:

 Our investigators assist law enforcement with suspect interviews.

 Our investigators are available for sworn testimony in court if needed.

 Our office remains available to law enforcement, for any assistance they 
need, until the case has been resolved.

120

Provided under S.C. Code 
§ 39-15-1190

Customers: 
Law Enforcement 
Agencies; Solicitors; 
Department of Revenue

Legislative Intent: To provide a 
system of state trademark 
registration and protection 
substantially consistent with the 
federal system of trademark 
registration and protection. 
(Section 4, 1994 Act No. 486)



Investigation of Distribution, Trafficking &
Production of Counterfeit Marks
Deliverable No. 45

Trademark violations are 
discovered through multiple 
outlets:

 Citizen complaints

 Law enforcement referrals

 Complaints from the trademark 
holder or trademark holder’s 
representative

 Compliance checks

121

Provided under S.C. Code 
§ 39-15-1190

Customers: 
Law Enforcement Agencies; 
Solicitors; Department of 
Revenue

Legislative Intent: To provide a 
system of state trademark 
registration and protection 
substantially consistent with the 
federal system of trademark 
registration and protection. 
(Section 4, 1994 Act No. 486)



Training and Education on Distribution, Trafficking &
Production of Counterfeit Marks
Deliverable No. 46

 In order to combat counterfeit trafficking, Secretary of State’s Office 
investigators conduct educational seminars for the public and training 
seminars for law enforcement. The purpose of the seminars is to educate the 
audiences on the dangers and negative effects of counterfeit, and to show 
them how to identify when counterfeit goods are being sold.

 Law enforcement training partners have included:

 South Carolina Gang Investigators Association

 International Anti-Counterfeiting Association

 South Carolina Association of Legal Investigators

 Individual Law Enforcement Agencies in South Carolina

 Federal Bureau of Investigation

122

Legislative Intent: To provide a 
system of state trademark 
registration and protection 
substantially consistent with the 
federal system of trademark 
registration and protection. 
(Section 4, 1994 Act No. 486)

Provided under S.C. Code 
§ 39-15-1190

Customers: 
Law Enforcement 
Agencies; General Public



0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

FY 2015-16 FY 2016-17 FY 2017-18 FY 2018-19

29

26

35

28

3
4

9

5

Number of Counterfeit Investigations and Trainings

Counterfeit Investigations Trainings & Public Education Seminars

123



Rejection of Sovereign Citizen Documents
Deliverable No. 47

 Sovereign citizens believe that the various levels of government operate 
without authority and have no jurisdiction over them. They tend to be 
antagonistic towards government, especially law enforcement and judges.

 The Secretary of State’s Office is targeted by sovereign citizens because the 
Secretary of State files Uniform Commercial Code filings and authenticates 
documents for use overseas.  In addition, sovereign citizens will sometimes 
attempt to file trademarks and other random documents, and request oaths 
and bonds of public officials under the Freedom of Information Act.

 The Investigations & Trademarks Division is primarily responsible for rejecting 
sovereign citizen documents and forwarding them to law enforcement (both 
SLED and the FBI).  

124

Provided under S.C. Code 
§ 26-1-230, § 36-9-
516(b)(8), -516(b)(9) 

Customers: 
General Public; Law 
Enforcement

Outcome Sought by Agency:
Prevent the filing or 
certification of fraudulent 
and improper documents.



Example of Sovereign Citizen Filing

News Article on Same Sovereign Citizen 
Convicted of Violating Federal Tax Law

125



0

50

100

150

200

250

300

FY 2015-16 FY 2016-17 FY 2017-18 FY 2018-19

87

182
199

279

Sovereign Citizen Filings Rejected and/or 
Forwarded to Law Enforcement

126



Investigation of Violations of Private Personnel 
Placement Services Act & Special Purpose District 
Filing Delinquencies
Deliverable Nos. 48 & 49

 The Secretary of State has the authority to investigate filing deficiencies 
involving employment agencies and special purpose districts.

 These deliverables will be discussed further in Deliverable Group 4.

127

Provided under S.C. Code 
§ 41-25-110, § 6-11-
1640(A) 

Customers: 
Private Personnel 
Placement Services; 
Special Purpose Districts

Outcome Sought by 
Agency/Legislative Intent:
Comply with duties outlined in 
SC Private Personnel Placement 
Services Act; That public trust 
be secured by requiring special 
purpose districts to register and 
report financial and other 
activities. (1984 Act No. 488)



Trademark & Service Mark Registration

The purpose of the Trademarks and 
Service Marks Act of 1993 is to “provide 
a system of state trademark registration 
and protection substantially consistent 
with the federal system of trademark 
registration and protection under the 
Trademark Act of 1946, as amended.”

128



Trademark & Service Mark Registration
 A person, which may be an individual or entity, may 

file an application to register a trademark or service 
mark with the Secretary of State’s Office. 

 To qualify for registration, a mark must be in use, 
which is defined as the bona fide use of a mark in the 
ordinary course of trade. A mark is considered in use:
 On goods when placed on the goods, containers, or 

displays associated with goods or containers; tags or 
labels affixed to the goods or containers; or documents 
associated with goods if the nature of the goods makes 
placement impracticable.

 On services when used or displayed in sale or 
advertising of services rendered in this State.

 An applicant cannot register a mark merely to reserve 
a right in a mark prior to it being in use.

129



Trademark & Service Mark Registration Application
Deliverable No. 50

In an application for a trademark or service 
mark, an applicant must provide the 
following information:

 The name and business address of the applicant 
and, if an entity, the state in which the entity is 
organized; 

 The goods or services in connection with which the 
mark is used; 

 The mode or manner in which the mark is used; 

 The class(es) in which the goods or services fall; 

 The date the mark was first used anywhere and in 
this State; and 

 If the applicant has filed an application to 
federally register the mark, the filing date, serial 
number, status, and outcome of the application.

130

Required by S.C. Code 
§§ 39-15-1105, -1120,     
-1125, -1140, -1185 

Customers: 
Persons seeking to 
register a trademark or 
service mark

Legislative Intent: To provide a 
system of state trademark 
registration and protection 
substantially consistent with the 
federal system of trademark 
registration and protection. 
(Section 4, 1994 Act No. 486)



Trademark & Service Mark Registration Application
Deliverable No. 50

In addition, the application requires the 
following:

 A statement that the applicant is the owner 
of the mark, that the mark is in use, and that 
to the knowledge of the applicant, no other 
person has registered either federally or in 
South Carolina, or has the right to use this 
mark in its identical form or in near 
resemblance as to be likely, when applied to 
the goods or services of another person, to 
cause confusion or to cause mistake or to 
deceive; 

 Three specimens showing the mark in use; 
and

 A fee of $15.00 for each class selected by the 
applicant.

131

Required by S.C. Code 
§§ 39-15-1105, -1120,     
-1125, -1140, -1185 

Customers: 
Persons seeking to 
register a trademark or 
service mark

Legislative Intent: To provide a 
system of state trademark 
registration and protection 
substantially consistent with the 
federal system of trademark 
registration and protection. 
(Section 4, 1994 Act No. 486)



Trademark & Service Mark Registration Application
Deliverable No. 50

 Upon registration, the Secretary of 
State issues a certificate to the 
registrant indicating the date of 
registration, date of expiration, 
classes of goods or services, and a 
depiction of the mark as described 
by the applicant.

132

Required by S.C. Code 
§§ 39-15-1105, -1120,     
-1125, -1140, -1185 

Customers: 
Persons seeking to register 
a trademark or service 
mark

Legislative Intent: To provide a 
system of state trademark 
registration and protection 
substantially consistent with the 
federal system of trademark 
registration and protection. 
(Section 4, 1994 Act No. 486)



Trademark & Service Mark Registration Renewal
Deliverable No. 51

 Trademark and service mark registrations are in effect for a five year period 
and may be renewed at any time in the six months prior to expiration of the 
mark.

 To renew registration of a trademark or service mark, an applicant completes 
the same application as when the applicant initially registered the mark. 

 The main difference is that the fee for a renewal is $5.00 per application.

133

Legislative Intent: To provide a 
system of state trademark 
registration and protection 
substantially consistent with the 
federal system of trademark 
registration and protection. 
(Section 4, 1994 Act No. 486)

Required by S.C. Code 
§§ 39-15-1130, -1185 

Customers: 
Owners of previously-
registered trademarks or 
service marks



Trademark & Service Mark Registration Assignment
Deliverable No. 52

 A mark that has been registered with the Secretary of State’s Office may be 
assigned with the good will of the business in which the mark is used or with 
that part of the good will of the business connected with the use of and 
symbolized by the mark.

 The applicant for an assignment completes an assignment application 
providing information regarding the mark and its new owner and submits it 
along with specimens and a copy of the agreement transferring ownership of 
the mark to the assignee.

 The Secretary of State’s Office issues a new certificate for the remainder of 
the term of the registration to the assignee.

 The fee for an assignment is $3.00.

134

Legislative Intent: To provide a 
system of state trademark 
registration and protection 
substantially consistent with the 
federal system of trademark 
registration and protection. 
(Section 4, 1994 Act No. 486)

Required by S.C. Code 
§§ 39-15-1135, -1185 

Customers: 
Owners of registered 
trademarks or service 
marks; Persons receiving 
assignment of the marks



Rejection of Trademark & Service Mark Filings
Deliverable No. 53

The Secretary of State will reject an application for registration of a mark if it 
does not include the information required on the application or if it:

 Is immoral, deceptive, or scandalous;

 Disparages or falsely suggests a connection with a person, institution, belief, 
or national symbol;

 Consists of or includes the flag, coat of arms, or insignia of the United States, 
a state or municipality, or a foreign nation; or

 Consists of or includes a name, signature, or portrait of a living individual 
without consent.

135

Legislative Intent: To provide a 
system of state trademark 
registration and protection 
substantially consistent with the 
federal system of trademark 
registration and protection. 
(Section 4, 1994 Act No. 486)

Provided under S.C. Code 
§§ 39-15-1110, -1115,     
-1120, -1130, -1135, -1185 

Customers: 
Persons seeking to register a 
trademark or service mark



Rejection of Trademark & Service Mark Filings
Deliverable No. 53

The Secretary of State most commonly rejects an application for registration of a 
mark if it:

 Is merely descriptive or deceptively misdescriptive of the applicant’s goods or 
services;

 Is primarily geographically descriptive or deceptively misdescriptive of the 
applicant’s goods or services;

 Is merely a proper name or surname; or

 So resembles a mark registered in this State or previously used and not 
abandoned by another person in this State as to be likely to cause confusion 
or mistake or to deceive when used on or in connection with the applicant’s 
goods or services.

136

Legislative Intent: To provide a 
system of state trademark 
registration and protection 
substantially consistent with the 
federal system of trademark 
registration and protection. 
(Section 4, 1994 Act No. 486)

Provided under S.C. Code 
§§ 39-15-1110, -1115,     
-1120, -1130, -1135, -1185 

Customers: 
Persons seeking to register a 
trademark or service mark



0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

FY 2015-16 FY 2016-17 FY 2017-18 FY 2018-19

567

618
589 589

147 148
165 163

16 23 29 17

536
566

628

541

Number of Trademark and Service Mark Filings Processed

New Applications Renewal Applications Assignments Rejections

1,355 1,411
1,310

137

1,266



Appeal of Denial to Register a Trademark 
or Service Mark
Deliverable No. 54

 If the Secretary of State’s Office finally refuses registration of a mark, 
the applicant may appeal the decision to the circuit court of Richland 
County in accordance with the Administrative Procedures Act. 

 No appeals have been filed during the years included in the Program 
Evaluation Report.

138

Legislative Intent: To provide a 
system of state trademark 
registration and protection 
substantially consistent with the 
federal system of trademark 
registration and protection. 
(Section 4, 1994 Act No. 486)

Provided under S.C. Code 
§ 39-15-1120

Customers: 
Persons seeking to register 
a trademark or service 
mark



Publication of Active Trademarks & Service Marks
Deliverable No. 55

 S.C. Code of Laws §39-15-
1140 requires that the 
Secretary of State keep a 
record of all registered and 
renewed marks and 
assignments of marks for 
public examination.

 In compliance with this 
section, the Secretary of 
State provides a listing of 
all current trademarks and 
service marks on its 
website that is updated 
daily.  This allows 
customers to determine 
whether the mark they 
would like to register is 
currently in use or similar 
to a mark that is already 
registered.

139

Legislative Intent: To provide a 
system of state trademark 
registration and protection 
substantially consistent with the 
federal system of trademark 
registration and protection. 
(Section 4, 1994 Act No. 486)

Provided under S.C. Code 
§ 39-15-1140

Customers: 
Persons seeking to register 
a trademark or service 
mark; General Public



Livestock Brands & Earmarks Registration
Deliverable No. 56

 A person may apply to register an earmark or brand for branding 
livestock with the Secretary of State’s Office.

 The fee is $3.00 and upon registration, the Secretary of State issues a 
certificate to the owner showing the brand or earmark that has been 
registered and the place where the brand will appear on the livestock. 

140

Required by S.C. Code 
§§ 47-9-260, -270, -280, 
-330, -340, -390, -400

Customers: 
Owners or stock owners of 
cattle, horses, mules, 
asses, hogs, sheep and 
goats

Outcome Sought by Agency:
Record unique livestock 
brands for owners of cattle, 
horses, mules, asses, hogs, 
sheep and goats to facilitate 
identification of ownership.



Livestock Brands & Earmarks Registration
Deliverable No. 56

 To register a livestock brand or earmark, the applicant must provide:

 A facsimile of the desired brand;

 A written application to adopt the brand; 

 A statement as to where the brand will appear on the livestock; 
and 

 A $3.00 fee.

141

Required by S.C. Code 
§§ 47-9-260, -270, -280, 
-330, -340, -390, -400

Customers: 
Owners or stock owners of 
cattle, horses, mules, 
asses, hogs, sheep and 
goats

Outcome Sought by Agency:
Record unique livestock 
brands for owners of cattle, 
horses, mules, asses, hogs, 
sheep and goats to facilitate 
identification of ownership.



Rejection of Livestock Brand & Earmark Filings
Deliverable No. 57

The Secretary of State will reject an 
application for a livestock brand or 
earmark if the required information is 
not provided or if the applicant does 
not meet the statutory requirements 
for registration (for example, if the 
applicant is already the owner of 
another registered livestock brand or 
earmark.)

142

Required by S.C. Code 
§ 47-9-270

Customers: 
Owners or stock owners of 
cattle, horses, mules, 
asses, hogs, sheep and 
goats

Outcome Sought by Agency:
Record unique livestock 
brands for owners of cattle, 
horses, mules, asses, hogs, 
sheep and goats to facilitate 
identification of ownership.



0

5

10

15

20

25

30

FY 2015-16

FY 2016-17

FY 2017-18

FY 2018-19

19
21

19

17

5 5

2
8

Livestock Brands and Earmarks Filings

Registrations Rejections

143



Performance Measures Related to 
Investigations & Trademarks Deliverables

 Performance Measure No. 4: Protect data and records and provide 
staff additional tools to fulfill statutory duties. (Create centralized 
investigations database application for charities, professional 
fundraisers, raffles, investigations and trademark violations.)

 Performance Measure No. 5: Protect data and records and provide 
staff additional tools to fulfill statutory duties. (Create database and 
applications for municipal incorporations, railroads, landlord-tenants, 
business opportunities and special purpose districts.)

 Performance Measure No. 12: Improve search capabilities for 
customer inquires.

 Performance Measure No. 17: Provide public additional online 
information. 144



Performance Measure No. 4: Protect data and records and provide staff 
additional tools to fulfill statutory duties. (Create centralized 
investigations database application for charities, professional 
fundraisers, raffles, investigations and trademark violations.)

 In FY 2017-18, a new investigations application was launched.  This 
application provided a centralized database for investigative staff to track 
investigations related to trademarks, business opportunities, and employment 
agencies.  Development of the application began in FY 2016-17.

 In FY 2019-20, the investigations database was expanded to track sovereign 
citizen filings.

145



Performance Measure No. 5: Protect data and records and provide staff 
additional tools to fulfill statutory duties. (Create database and 
applications for municipal incorporations, railroads, landlord-tenants, 
business opportunities and special purpose districts.)

 In FY 2014-15, the Secretary of State launched a public officials database 
application that included special purpose districts.  This will be discussed 
further under Deliverables Group 4.

146



Performance Measure Nos. 12 & 17: Improve search capabilities for 
customer inquires and provide public additional online information. 

 In FY 2016-17, the Secretary of State’s Office debuted an online listing of 
trademarks and service marks registered with the Secretary of State. The list 
is updated daily and includes the name of the trademark or service mark, the 
relevant goods or services and class numbers, the applicant’s name, and the 
expiration date of the mark. This listing makes it easier for trademark 
customers to determine the availability of a mark, and improves the 
efficiency of the Trademarks Division by reducing the number of calls received 
from customers.

 That same year, the Secretary of State’s Office also provided an online listing 
of livestock brands and earmarks that is updated daily.

147



Revenue & Costs Related to Investigations & 
Trademarks Deliverables

 Trademark registration fees 
($15.00 per class*)

 Trademark renewal fees  ($5.00 
per application*)

 Trademark assignment fees 
($3.00 per application*)

 Livestock brand registration 
fees ($3.00 per application**)

148

The Investigations & Trademarks Division collects fee 
revenue from the following sources:

*Amount of fees have not increased since the initial passage of the Trademarks 
and Service Marks Act of 1993. (1994 Act. No. 486)

**Amount of fees have not increased since the passage of 1952 Act No. 896. 



0

2,000

4,000

6,000

8,000

10,000

12,000

14,000

FY 2015-16 FY 2016-17 FY 2017-18 FY 2018-19

$12,210

$13,110

$12,255

$13,850

$735 $740 $825 $815

$48 $69 $87 $51

New Applications Renewal Applications Assignments

$13,919

149

Trademark and Service Mark Filing Fees Collected

$12,993 $13,167

$14,716



0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

FY 2015-16

FY 2016-17

FY 2017-18

FY 2018-19

$57 $63
$57

$51

Livestock Brands and Earmarks Filing Fees Collected

Registrations

150



151

0

10,000

20,000

30,000

40,000

50,000

60,000

70,000

80,000

90,000

FY 2015-16 FY 2016-17 FY 2017-18 FY 2018-19

$13,050 $13,982 $13,224 $14,767

$65,544

$72,395

$80,364 $78,922

Comparison of Fee Revenue Collected by Investigations and 
Trademarks Division with Costs (Excluding Agency Operations)

Revenue Costs Excluding Agency Operations



Contact Information

Melissa Dunlap

Deputy Secretary of State & Chief Legal Counsel

(803) 734-2157

mdunlap@sos.sc.gov

Shannon A. Wiley

General Counsel

(803) 734-0246

swiley@sos.sc.gov

Meredith Augustine

Deputy General Counsel

(803) 734-0208

maugustine@sos.sc.gov

Kim Wickersham

Director of Public Charities

(803) 734-2174

kwickersham@sos.sc.gov

Doug Renew

Chief Investigator

(803) 734-1728

drenew@sos.sc.gov

Renee Daggerhart

Executive Assistant to the Secretary/Media 
Relations Director/Trademarks

(803) 734-0629

rdaggerhart@sos.sc.gov
152

mailto:mdunlap@sos.sc.gov
mailto:swiley@sos.sc.gov
mailto:maugustine@sos.sc.gov
mailto:kwickersham@sos.sc.gov
mailto:drenew@sos.sc.gov
mailto:rdaggerhart@sos.sc.gov


 

 
 

COMMITTEE CONTACT INFORMATION AND UPCOMING MEETINGS 
 
  



 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

UPCOMING MEETINGS 
All at 10:30 a.m. in Blatt 321 

 
Tuesday, November 5th  

 

Monday, December 9th   
 



 

 

END NOTES 
1 Visual Summary Figure 1 is compiled from information in the agency’s study materials available online under “Citizens’ 
Interest,” under “House Legislative Oversight Committee Postings and Reports,” and then under “Secretary of State, Office of 
the,” https://www.scstatehouse.gov/CommitteeInfo/HouseLegislativeOversightCommittee/AgencyPHPFiles/SecretaryofState.php 
(accessed August 28, 2019); and information available on the agency’s website, https://sos.sc.gov/ (accessed August 28, 2019). 

                                                 

https://www.scstatehouse.gov/CommitteeInfo/HouseLegislativeOversightCommittee/AgencyPHPFiles/SecretaryofState.php
https://sos.sc.gov/

	Agenda
	Meeting Minutes
	Study Timeline
	Agency Snapshot
	Charities and Trademarks Deliverables
	Committee Contact Information and Upcoming Meetings
	End Notes

